
CITY OF ALBION 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

Meetings:  First and Third Mondays – 7:00 p.m. 
 

City Council Chambers ♦ Second Floor ♦ 112 West Cass Street ♦ Albion, MI  49224 

 
 

AGENDA  
 

COUNCIL MEETING 

Monday, November 18, 2019 

7:00 P.M. 
 

PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES DURING MEETING 
 

I.  CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. MOMENT OF SILENCE TO BE OBSERVED 
 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

IV. ROLL CALL 
 

V. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA (Includes any proposed additions, deletions 
or other changes to the agenda) 

 
VI. PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS 
 

A. Oath of Office-Al Smith 
B. Project Rising Tide Update-Linda LaNoue 
C. Recreation Update-Larry Williams 
D. Albion Aglow 
E. Small Business Saturday 
F. Update on Second Grocery Store 
G. Updates on Tax Issues-Concerns Impacting Albion and Non-Profit 

Organizations 
H. Irwin Avenue Construction Update 
I. Approve City Hall Closure on Friday, December 13, 2019 @ 1:00 p.m. 

for Holiday Party 
J.   "Sprout Box" Program -Albion Food Hub 

                   
VII. PUBLIC HEARING-None 
          

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their 
comments to agenda items only and to no more than three (3) minutes. 
Proper decorum is required.) 

 

IX. CLOSED SESSION –None 
  

X. CONSENT CALENDAR (VV) (Items on Consent Calendar are voted on  
             as one unit) 
 

A. Approval Regular Session Minutes, November 4, 2019 
B. City Council Confirmation of Vacancy on EDC Board of Directors as a 

Result of the Precinct 3 November Election 

COUNCIL-MANAGER 

GOVERNMENT 

 

Council members and 

other officials normally in 

attendance. 

 

 

David Atchison 

Mayor 

 

Vicky Clark 

Council Member 

1st Precinct 

 

Lenn Reid 

Council Member 

2nd Precinct 

 

Al Smith 

Council Member 

3rd Precinct 

 

Marcola Lawler 
Council Member 

4th Precinct 

 

Jeanette Spicer 

Council Member  

5th Precinct   

 

Shane Williamson 

Council Member 

6th Precinct 

 

Darwin McClary 

 City Manager 

 

 The Harkness Law Firm 

Atty Cullen Harkness  

 

Jill Domingo 

City Clerk 

 

 
NOTICE FOR PERSONS WITH 

HEARING IMPAIR-MENTS 

WHO REQUIRE THE USE OF A 

PORTABLE LISTENING DEVICE   

 

Please contact the City 

Clerk’s office at 

517.629.5535 and a listening 

device will be provided 

upon notification.  If you 

require a signer, please 

notify City Hall at least five 

(5) days prior to the posted 

meeting time. 



CITY OF ALBION 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

Meetings:  First and Third Mondays – 7:00 p.m. 
 

City Council Chambers ♦ Second Floor ♦ 112 West Cass Street ♦ Albion, MI  49224 

 

      
XI. ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL DISCUSSION 

 
A. Elect Mayor Pro Tempore 

 
B. Discussion on Section 4.3 (b) of City Charter Related to Eligibility for 

City Boards 
  

C. Request Approval 2nd Reading & Adoption Ordinance # 2019-09, An 
Ordinance to Amend Chapter 1, Section 1-28, Ethics 

 
D. Request Approval 2nd Reading & Adoption Ordinance # 2019-10, An 

Ordinance to Amend Chapter 22 to Add Article VI, Sections 22-220 
through 22-227, Collection Bins 

 
E. Request Approval of 2020 Council Meeting Dates 

 
F. Discuss Establishment of a Permanent Parks, Trails & Recreation 

Commission 

 
G. Discuss Establishment of a Permanent Arts & Culture Commission 

 
H. Discuss Establishment of a Permanent Public-Private Partnership 

Program 

 
I. Request Approval for Boards & Commissions Appointments: 

 Scott Evans, Reappointment, DDA, Term to Expire 12-31-2023 

 Nidia Wolf, Reappointment, DDA, Term to Expire 12-31-2022 

 Herm McCall, Partial Term, EDC, Term to Expire 7-1-2020 

 **Annette Norris, EDC Workforce Development, Term to Expire 
at Completion of Project 

 
XII.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 

XIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their 
comments to no more than three (3) minutes.  Proper decorum is required). 

 

XIV. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 

XV.  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 
 

XVI.  MOTION TO EXCUSE ABSENT COUNCIL MEMBER (S) 
 

XVII. ROLL CALL 
 

XVIII. ADJOURN 



 

You’re invited to the City of Albion 

Holiday Party 

celebration 
A $10.00 donation is suggested to cover the cost of the food.  

Please turn your money into Bonnie Edmonds, City Hall by 

Monday, November 25, 2019. 

Where: Ismon House, 300 S. Clinton St. 

When: Friday, December 13, 2019 

Time: 1:00 p.m. 

 



 

 

Page 1 of 8                                                                             Council minutes/11-4-2019 

 

  

 

City of Albion 
Council Session Minutes  

November 4, 2019 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Atchison called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 

II.  MOMENT OF SILENCE TO BE OBSERVED 
 
III.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
IV.  ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Lenn Reid (2); Sonya Brown (3); Marcola Lawler (4); Jeanette 
Spicer (5); Shane Williamson (6) and Mayor Atchison.   
 
ABSENT: Vicky Clark (1) was absent 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
 
Darwin McClary, City Manager; Cullen Harkness, City Attorney; Jill Domingo, 
City Clerk; Kent Phillips, Acting Interim Public Service Director; John Tracy, 
Director Planning, Building & Code Enforcement; Tom Mead, Finance Director 
and Scott Kipp, Chief Public Safety. 
 

V.  APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA (Includes any proposed additions, deletions or other 
changes to the agenda) 

 

Mayor Atchison asked to add a Moment of Silence to the Agenda for the young 
man that was shot on Saturday morning and lost his life. 

 
Williamson moved, Lawler supported, CARRIED, to Approve the Agenda with 
the above addition. (6-0, vv) 
 
A moment of silence was given for the young man that was shot on 
Saturday morning and lost his life. 

 

VI.   PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. Demolition of Union Steel Building-Calhoun County Land Bank 
 

Krista Trout-Edwards, Executive Director Calhoun County Land Bank 
provided the Council with the following update on the Calhoun County Land 
Bank and the Demolition of Union Steel Building: 
 



 

 

Page 2 of 8                                                                             Council minutes/11-4-2019 

 

  

 

 2008-2013 Minimal Land Bank funded demolitions 
 2014 CDBG Demolition Grant, 200 S. Superior St. demo, 

Collaboration Corner 
 2015-First Transform this Home Project; 203 N. Superior; HHF Demo 

Grant, TMA & Little Lambs of Jesus 
 2016-AmeriCorps Vista, Gina’s, HHF 3.8 Demos 
 2017-Albion Community Gardens, Dalrymple School demo, HHF 3.8 

Demos & First NMM 
 2018 American Colloid, HHF 3.8 Demos, Chemical Grant Funds 

 
 Land Bank Grants for the past five years with other partners and local 

match: 
 CDBG Grant    $408,799  32 Demos 
 Albion HHF   $268,517 27 Demos 
 HHF3.8   $3.8  38 Demos in Albion 

            (County Wide)  
 Cronin Foundation  $125,000 Dalrymple School 
 Target Market Analysis $20,000 1 Study 
 EPA Assessments  $600,000 5 Projects in Albion 

  (County Wide) 
 Chemical Grant  $2,000 1 Project 
 

 Large Scale Projects (Non-Residential): 
 200 S. Superior St  $84,000 Demo & Restoration 
 203 N. Superior St  $128,328 Stabilization 
 406 S. Ann St  $341,749 Demo & Restoration 

 
 Union Steel-501 N. Berrien St: 

Demolition Bid $420,750   Range up to $963,850 
 2008- Property foreclosed, sold at auction 
 2011-Property foreclosed, sold at auction 
 2012-Private owner, oil & asbestos spill, EPA response 
 2014-Property foreclosed, sold at auction 
 2019-Environmental assessments; demolition bid; seek funds for 

demo 
 Property is a safety hazard and negatively impacting property 

value of properties in the area 
 

 Other Properties in Albion that need stabilization; demolition or 
investment: 
 Stabilization: 203 N. Superior St Failing brick, unable to enter 
 Demolition:  200 S. Superior St  Failing brick, unable to  

                                                                 enter 
 Other Costs:       Boarding and securing-   



 

 

Page 3 of 8                                                                             Council minutes/11-4-2019 

 

  

 

                                                                  $74,152 
 Investment:  709 N. Clinton St  EPA Grant-in process 
 Investment: 129-131 N. Superior St EPA Grant-in process 
                                                                     $70,000 in cleanup 
 Investment 100 S. Superior St  Needs clean-up & 

      Stabilization-$99,725 
 Investment 1000 W. Erie St  Coming to the Land  

                                                                 Bank Authority 
 

Comments were received from Council Members Lawler and Brown and 
Mayor Atchison 

 
B. Entrepreneurship & Community Service Certificates for: 

 TNT Beauty Supply 
 
Mayor Atchison read aloud the entrepreneurship certificate and he and 
Council Member Brown presented to TNT Beauty Supply. 

 
 Cuts by Moose 

 
Mayor Atchison read aloud the entrepreneurship certificate for Cuts by 
Moose. 
 

 Kerizma 
 
Mayor Atchison read aloud the entrepreneurship certificate for Kerizma. 

 
 Mike & Brenda Lopez 

 
Mayor Atchison read aloud the community service certificate and he and 
Council Member Brown presented to Mike and Brenda Lopez. 
 

Comments were received from Mike Lopez and Council Member Brown. 
 
VII.  PUBLIC HEARINGS-None 
   
VIII. PUBLIC Comments (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their 

comments to agenda items and to no more than three (3) minutes.  Proper 
decorum is required.) 

 

Comments were received from Elrarene Showers, 805 Valhalla Dr; Mayor 
Atchison and City Manager McClary. 
 

IX. CLOSED SESSION- None 
 



 

 

Page 4 of 8                                                                             Council minutes/11-4-2019 

 

  

 

X.  CONSENT CALENDAR (VV) Items on the Consent Calendar are voted on as 
one unit) 

 
A. Approval Regular Session Minutes, October 21, 2019 
 

Williamson moved, Brown supported, CARRIED, to Approve the Consent 
Calendar as presented. (6-0, vv) 

 
XI. ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL DISCUSSION 

 
A. Discussion/Approval of City of Albion to Contribute Funding for Demolition of 

Union Steel Building 
 

Comments were received from Council Members Lawler, Brown, Spicer, 
Williamson and Reid; Mayor Atchison; Krista Trout-Edwards, Director 
Calhoun County Land Bank; City Manager McClary and Jim Dyer, Calhoun 
County Legal Counsel. 
 
Council Member Williamson made a motion with support from Council 
Member Lawler to Approve a contribution from the City to the Calhoun 
County Land Bank Authority in the amount not to exceed $150,000 upon 
approval and execution by the City of an acceptable intergovernmental 
contract and receipt of invoices acceptable to the Finance Director for the 
purpose of participating in the cost of the Authority’s demolition of the Union 
Steel property located at 501 Berrien Street.  The Calhoun County Land 
Bank Authority shall draft said contract. 
 
Comments were received from Council Members Brown, Williamson, Lawler 
and Spicer; City Manager McClary; City Attorney Harkness; Mayor Atchison; 
Jim Dyer, Calhoun County Legal Counsel and Finance Director Mead. 
 
Council Member Williamson rescinded his motion 
 
Mayor Atchison stated he had spoke with Jim Dyer, Calhoun County Legal 
Counsel and an offer was made for the City to pay $100,000 in 2020 and 
$50,000 for the next four years for a total contribution of $300,000 at the end 
of five years. 
 
Lawler moved, Reid supported, CARRIED, to Approve a Contribution from 
the City to the Calhoun County Land Bank Authority in the Amount of 
$100,000 in 2020 and $50,000 for the Next Four Years for a Total 
Contribution of $300,000 at the End of Five Years upon Approval and 
Execution by the City of an Acceptable Intergovernmental Contract and 
Receipt of Invoices Acceptable to the Finance Director for the Purpose of 
Participating in the cost of the Authority’s Demolition of the Union Steel 



 

 

Page 5 of 8                                                                             Council minutes/11-4-2019 

 

  

 

Property Located at 501 Berrien Street.  The Calhoun County Land Bank 
Authority Shall Draft Said Contract. (6-0, rcv) 

 
B. Request Approval 2nd Reading & Adoption Ordinance # 2019-08, An 

Ordinance to Create Chapter 100, Article 1, Sections 1.1-1.3, Article 2, 
Sections 2.1-2.2, Article 3, Sections 3.1-3.19, Article 4, Sections 4.1-4.13, 
Article 5, Sections 5.1-5.11, Article 6, Sections 6.1-6.6, Article 7, 7.1-7.26, 
Article 8, Sections 8.1-8.5, Article 9, Sections 9.1-9.15, and Article 10, 
Sections 10-10.8, Zoning 

 
Comments were received from City Attorney Harkness who clarified the title 
of the Ordinance should read Sections 10.1 – 10.8, Zoning.   
 
Williamson moved, Brown supported, CARRIED, to 2nd Reading & Adoption 
Ordinance # 2019-08, An Ordinance to Create Chapter 100, Article 1, 
Sections 1.1-1.3, Article 2, Sections 2.1-2.2, Article 3, Sections 3.1-3.19, 
Article 4, Sections 4.1-4.13, Article 5, Sections 5.1-5.11, Article 6, Sections 
6.1-6.6, Article 7, 7.1-7.26, Article 8, Sections 8.1-8.5, Article 9, Sections 9.1-
9.15, and Article 10, Sections 10-10.8, Zoning as presented. (6-0, rcv) 
 

C. Request Approval 1st Reading Ordinance # 2019-09, An Ordinance to 
Amend Chapter 1, Section 1-28, Ethics 
 
Council Member Brown asked to Amend the Ordinance # 2019-08, Section 
1-28 Section 1 (2) to Read Said Public Hearing Shall be Scheduled Within 30 
Days and the Public Hearing Shall Occur Within 60 days of the Date the 
Three Council Persons Notify the Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem, the City Attorney 
and the City Manager, in Writing of their Call for a Public Hearing. 
 
Comments were received from City Attorney Harkness. 
 
Brown moved, Lawler supported, CARRIED, to Approve Amendment to 
Ordinance # 2019-08, Section 1-28 Section 1 (2) to Read Said Public 
Hearing Shall be Scheduled Within 30 Days and the Public Hearing Shall 
Occur Within 60 days of the Date the Three Council Persons Notify the 
Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem, the City Attorney and the City Manager, in Writing of 
their Call for a Public Hearing.. (6-0, rcv) 
 
Spicer moved, Brown supported, CARRIED, to Approve 1st Reading 
Ordinance # 2019-09, An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 1, Section 1-28, 
Ethics, amending Section 1-28 Section 1 (2) to Read Said Public Hearing 
Shall be Scheduled Within 30 Days and the Public Hearing Shall Occur 
Within 60 days of the Date the Three Council Persons Notify the Mayor, 
Mayor Pro Tem, the City Attorney and the City Manager, in Writing of their 
Call for a Public Hearing.. (6-0, rcv) 



 

 

Page 6 of 8                                                                             Council minutes/11-4-2019 

 

  

 

 
D. Request Approval Consumers Energy Easement for Electric Facilities at 111 

and 113 E. Erie St 
 

Comments were received from City Attorney Harkness 
 

Williamson moved, Brown supported, CARRIED, To Approve Consumers 
Energy Easement for Electric Facilities at 111 and 113 E. Erie St 
as presented. (6-0, rcv)  
 

E. Request Approval 1st Reading Ordinance # 2019-10, An Ordinance to 
Amend Chapter 22 to Add Article VI, Sections 22-220 through 22-227, 
Collection Bins 
 
Comments were received from Council Member Spicer and City Attorney 
Harkness. 
 
Brown moved, Reid supported, CARRIED, to Approve 1st Reading Ordinance 
# 2019-10, An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 22 to Add Article VI. Sections 
22-220 through 22-227, Collection Bins as presented. (6-0, rcv) 

 
XII. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 
The following items were requested for the next agenda: 
 
 Council Member Williamson asked for a Recreation Update  
 City Attorney Harkness asked for 2nd Reading and Adoption of 

Ordinances # 2019-09 and #2019-10 
 Mayor Atchison asked for an update on tax issues with non-profits and 

goals and objectives for the City Manager 
 

Mayor Atchison stated the budget meeting has been set for Saturday, 
November 16, 2019 from 9:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m. at City Hall. 

 
XIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their 

comments to no more than three (3) minutes.  Proper decorum is required.) 
 

Comments were received from Antonio Nelson, 28855 C Drive; Emily Smith, 
AmeriCorps Vista member; Nidia Wolf, 409 Irwin Avenue; Garrett Brown, 
1016 S. Superior St; Calhoun County Commissioner Gary Tompkins and 
Council Member Reid. 

 
XIV. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 



 

 

Page 7 of 8                                                                             Council minutes/11-4-2019 

 

  

 

City Manager McClary included a written report in the Council packets detailing 
the following: 
 The amendments that were approved by the City Council at the last meeting 

to the City Managers contract have been executed.  He will not seek an 
amendment for the moving expense provision. 

 Attended the following meetings: 
October 17-Hearing on a union grievance 
October 17-Webinar: Branding Your Community for Economic Success 
October 18-23 ICMA Annual Conference in Nashville, TN 
October 25-Irwin Avenue Reconstruction Project progress meeting 
October 28-Finance Director regarding FY 2020 budget preparation 
October 29-Building Authority special meeting 
October 30-Public Safety Director to discuss public safety operations and 
to tour facilities 
October 30-Calhoun County Land Bank Authority to discuss Union Steel 
demolition project 
October 30-Weekly meeting with Mayor Atchison 
October 31-Finance Director regarding Income Tax Administrator functions 

 A FY 2020 budget work session has been scheduled for City Council for 
Saturday, November 16 to review the proposed FY 2020 budget 

 The ICMA Executive Board approved his designation as an ICMA 
Credentialed Manager 

 Union Steel Demolition-He recommends that the City Council authorize a 
contribution from the City for the project but the City does not have the 
financial capacity to contribute the amount requested 

 Will be meeting with representatives from the Albion Community Gardens to 
discuss their concerns regarding removal of their tax-exempt status.  The 
matter is now scheduled to go before the Michigan Tax Tribunal in December 

 Irwin Avenue Reconstruction and Precinct 3 Election: 
 The contractors will ensure that both ends of the construction are open to 

traffic to the polling location 
 DPS will provide flag persons to help direct traffic during elections hours of 

7:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. 
 No construction work will occur in front of the three driveways to the church 

polling location on the day of the election 
 City staff has mailed letters to all Precinct 3 voters informing them of the 

construction work and how to access the polling location 
 DPS employees are placing door hangers on all visible doors at each home 
 City staff is posting information on the City’s website and social media 
 Temporary signage will be placed at the polling location driveways directing 

traffic into and out of the polling location 
 He and his husband have closed on their home within the City last Friday, 

and will be moving in next week once the contractors are finished with some 
interior improvements.  He looks forward to joining the Albion community as 
a resident and a taxpayer 



 

 

Page 8 of 8                                                                             Council minutes/11-4-2019 

 

  

 

 
XV. MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER’S COMMENTS 
 

Comments were received from Council Member Lawler; Mayor Atchison and 
City Attorney Harkness. 
 
Council Member Lawler called Privilege at 8:50 p.m. and left. 
 

XVI. EXCUSE ABSENT COUNCIL MEMBER (S) 
 

Brown moved, Williamson supported, CARRIED, to Excuse Council Member 
Vicky Clark (1). (5-0, vv) 
 

XVII. ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Lenn Reid (2); Sonya Brown (3); Jeannette Spicer (5); Shane 
Williamson (6) and Mayor Atchison.   

 
ABSENT: Council Member Vicky Clark (1) was absent and Council Member 
Lawler called Privilege at 8:50 p.m. and left 
 

XVIII. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 Brown moved, Spicer supported, CARRIED, to adjourn the regular session. (5-0, 
vv) 
 

Mayor Atchison adjourned the Regular Session at 8:52 p.m. 
 
 

 
 
 
__________________    _________________________ 

Date      Jill Domingo  
       City Clerk 



 

Council Action Summary Sheet 
 
 

 

Agenda Item #:  

Agenda Item Title: DISCUSSION – SEC. 4.3 OF CITY CHARTER – INELIGIBILITY OF PERSONS 

OR ELECTED OFFICIALS FOR APPOINTMENT TO CITY OFFICES 

Meeting Date: November 18, 2019 

Submitted by: Darwin McClary, City Manager 

Contact Information: (517) 629-7172; dmcclary@cityofalbionmi.gov 

Agenda Item Approvals: ☐  City Clerk 
☐  Finance Director/Treasurer 
☐  City Attorney 
❹  City Manager 

 

Background Brief:   

City council is being requested to discuss Sec. 4.3 of the Albion City Charter and its limitations 
on the eligibility of persons or elected officers for election or appointment to city offices.  
Questions have arisen recently regarding (1) the definition or meaning of the phrase “in default 
to the city” for the purposes of rendering a person ineligible for election or appointment to a 
city office; and (2) the ability of council to appoint individual council members to serve on 
boards and commissions in a capacity other than as a council member in the absence of state 
law expressly permitting members of the local legislative body to serve.  Also, clarification is 
needed as to whether a candidate for elected office who is currently serving on a board or 
commission must resign their office if elected to a city office. 

Sec. 4.3(b) states: 

Sec. 4.3. - Persons ineligible for city office or employment. 

(a) A person who is in default to the city shall not be eligible to hold any city office.  

(b) A person who holds or has held an elective city office shall not be eligible for appointment to an 

office or for employment for which compensation is paid by the city until one year has elapsed following 

the term for which he was elected or appointed.  

Administration is requesting guidance from the council and City Attorney on these matters to 
ensure that the provisions of the city charter are faithfully executed.  Can city council adopt 
ordinances to further clarify how city charter provisions are to be implemented when charter 
provisions are vague or ambiguous? 

  



Council Action Summary Sheet 
  Page 2 of 2 

Alternatives Analysis:   

Take no action.  If no action is taken, confusion will continue to exist regarding the status of 
board and commission members who are elected to a city office.  Confusion will also exist as to 
whether or not a person is eligible for elected office under the default provisions and whether 
the city council has the authority to appoint city council members to boards or commissions as 
citizen representatives when there is no statutory authority for a member of the legislative 
body to serve on those boards or commissions. 

Adopt clarifying policies.  Adopting ordinances that clarify the meanings of the provisions of 
Sec. 4.3(a) and (b) and methods of implementing those provisions would provide necessary 
guidance to city council and administration on the eligibility of persons to serve on boards and 
commissions and in city offices and would assist in establishing processes for handling instances 
in which there is a question of eligibility. 

Summary of Previous Council Action:   

None 

Financial Impact:   

None 

Recommended Motion(s):   

To direct the City Attorney to draft an ordinance for consideration by the city council that 
defines the term “default” under Sec. 4.3(a) of the city charter and clarifies the eligibility of 
persons or elected officers to serve on boards and commissions or in city offices under Secs. 
4.3(a) and (b) of the city charter. 

 

Attachments:   

None 

 



Sec. 4.3. - Persons ineligible for city office or employment.  

(a)  A person who is in default to the city shall not be eligible to hold any city office.  

(b)  A person who holds or has held an elective city office shall not be eligible for appointment to an 
office or for employment for which compensation is paid by the city until one year has elapsed 
following the term for which he was elected or appointed.  

State Law reference— Mandatory that charter provide for qualifications of officers, MCL 

117.3(d).  



1 
 

CITY OF ALBION 
ORDINANCE #2019-09 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 1, SECTION 1-28, ETHICS 

 
Purpose and Finding: 

As the City Council is aware, at the council’s most recent meeting, the Mayor 
proposed a modification to subsection (N) of the ordinance which relates to the 
timeframe in which a hearing is to be held regarding a potential ethics violation. 
The new language would require the hearing to be held within 30 days of when 
the three council persons calling for the public hearing notify the mayor, mayor 
pro tem, City Attorney, and the City Manager. Additionally, in reviewing the 
original ordinance, a typo was noted in sub-section (n)(12). It references a super 
majority vote while sub-section (n)(13) references a majority vote. Sub-section 
(n)(12) is also being amended to reflect a simple majority vote.   

THE CITY OF ALBION ORDAINS: 

Section 1. Chapter 1, Section 1-28, Sub-sections (N)(2) and (N)(12) of the 
Codified Ordinances of the City of Albion, are hereby amended as follows: 

Section 1-28: ETHICS 
 

(N) Enforcement and penalties: All city council members and the mayor shall 
have the primary responsibility to assure that they understand and meet 
the standards set forth in this ordinance and that the public can continue 
to have full confidence in the integrity of government. The disciplinary 
procedure shall be as follows: 
 
(2) In the event the meeting as described in subsection (n)(i) does not 

satisfactorily resolve the issue, or in the event the suspected 
council member has repeatedly violated this section, or if the 
violation is viewed to be especially serious, any three council 
members may call for a public hearing before council to determine 
whether the alleged violation has occurred, and if so, what 
sanctions, if any should be imposed. Said public hearing shall be 
scheduled within 30 days of the date the three council persons 
notify the Mayor, the Mayor Pro Tem, the City Attorney, and the 
City Manager, in writing, of their call for a public hearing. Said 
public hearing shall be held not more than 60 days from the date 
of the notice provided to the Mayor, the Mayor Pro Tem, the City 
Attorney, and the City Manager.  

 
(12) At the conclusion of the presentation of evidence or the closing 

comments of the accused council member, whichever is later, 
council members, excluding the accused council member, shall 



2 
 

vote to determine whether or not there is a violation by a majority 
vote. 

 
Section 2. Severability.  This ordinance and each article, section, subsection, 
paragraph, subparagraph, part, provision, sentence, word and portion thereof are 
hereby declared to be severable, and if they or any of them are declared to be 
invalid or unenforceable for any reason by a court of competent jurisdiction, the 
remainder of this ordinance shall not be affected. 
  

 
This Ordinance shall take effect on December 18, 2019 after publication. 
 
First Reading:     Second Reading & Adoption: 
   
 
November 4, 2019     November 18, 2019    
 
Ayes _____      Ayes   _____   
Nays _____      Nays   _____ 
Absent_____      Absent_____ 
 
 
_________________________   _________________________ 
Jill Domingo,      David Atchison, 
Clerk       Mayor. 



1 
 

CITY OF ALBION 
ORDINANCE #2019-10 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 22 TO ADD ARTICLE VI, SECTIONS 

22-220 THROUGH 22-227, COLLECTION BINS 
 
Purpose and Finding: 

As the City Council is aware, the City has been experiencing various issues 
relating to collection bins. These are the bins which certain organizations use to 
collect donations of clothing and other materials. Some of these companies are 
failing to maintain the bins, allowing them to fall into disrepair. Additionally, the 
bins are not regularly emptied and the surrounding areas are littered with items. 
This ordinance creates a permitting process for the bins and penalties for non-
compliance. Approval is recommended. 

THE CITY OF ALBION ORDAINS: 

Section 1. Chapter 22 of the Codified Ordinances of the City of Albion, is 
hereby amended, by adding Article VI, Sections 22-220 through 22-227 as 
follows: 

Article VI: COLLECTION BINS 
 
Section 22-220: Definitions 
 

a. As used in this Article, the following words or phrases shall have the 
following meaning(s): 

 
1. Collection bin means any container, receptacle, or similar device 

that is located on any parcel or lot of record within the City and 
that is used for soliciting and collecting the receipt of clothing, 
household items, or other salvageable personal property. This 
term does not include bins for the collection of recyclable material, 
any rubbish or garbage receptacle. 
 

2. Collection bin operator means a person who owns, operates, 
supervises or otherwise is in control of collection bins to solicit 
collections of salvageable personal property. 
 

3. Property owner means any person, agent, firm or corporation 
having a legal or equitable interest in the property; or recorded in 
the official records of the State, county or municipality as holding 
title to the property. 
 

4. Real property means a lot, plot or parcel of land recorded and 
located in the City of Albion. 



2 
 

 
Section 22-221: Permit Required 
 

a. No person or entity shall cause or permit the installation or placement of 
a collection bin upon any real property located within the City of Albion, 
whether public or private, without first obtaining an annual permit from 
the City Clerk. 

 
Section 22-222: Permit Application 
 

a. An application for a collection bin permit, as required by Section 22-221 
shall be made to the City Clerk upon forms provided by the City. Such 
application shall be filed with the City Clerk not less than thirty (30) days 
prior to date that the collection bin is placed on real property. One annual 
permit is required for each collection bin. The application shall contain 
the following information: 

1. An affidavit and acknowledgment from the property owner, giving 
written permission to place a collection bin on the property owner's 
real property, as well as an acknowledgment of receipt of a copy 
of this chapter, and a signed statement agreeing to obey all of its 
requirements; 

2. A site plan indicating the placement of the collection bin, in 
compliance with the requirements of Section 22-223; 

3. The name, address, telephone number and e-mail address of the 
applicant, property owner and collection bin operator; 

4. The name, address, telephone number and e-mail address of the 
agent or person who will be available during regular business 
hours and will be responsible for compliance; 

5. A photograph of the collection bin to be installed; 

6. The number to a 24-hour hotline for overflow events; 

7. A nonrefundable permit fee determined by resolution as set by 
City Council; 

8. A copy of the license and registration from the State of Michigan 
under the Michigan Consumer Protection Act (Act 331 of 1976, as 
amended) and/or the Charitable Organizations and Solicitations 
Act (Act 169 of 1975, as amended), if statutorily required; 

9. In order to bring existing collection bins into compliance with this 
section, collection bin operators, of existing collection bins, shall 
have 30 days from the effective date of this ordinance to submit a 
permit application to the City Clerk; 



3 
 

b. A collection bin permit is valid for a one-year period. The renewal 
application must be filed not later than thirty (30) days before the current 
permit expires. If the permit expires and the permit is not renewed, the 
collection bin must be removed from the real property within ten (10) 
days after expiration of the permit. 

 
Section 22-223: Permitted Locations 
 

a. Collection bins are allowed in the "M-1" Light Industrial District, "M-2" 
Heavy Industrial District, and "C" Commercial District. 

b. Collection bins shall not be located within one thousand (1,000) feet from 
another collection bin as measured along a straight line from one bin to 
the other. 

c. Collection bins shall not be placed on any public property owned by the 
City of Albion. 

 
Section 22-224: Standards for Bins and Surrounding Area 
 

a. Collection bins shall conform to the following standards: 

1. Collection bins shall be maintained in good condition and 
appearance with no structural damage, holes or visible rust and 
shall be free of graffiti. 

2. Collection bins are required to be placed on a paved or concrete 
surface. Collection bins must be level and stable. 

3. Collection bins shall be locked and be equipped with a secure 
safety chute so contents cannot be accessed by anyone other 
than those responsible for the retrieval of the contents. 

4. The collection bins shall be emptied with such frequency and 
regularity as to ensure that it does not overflow and materials do 
not accumulate outside the collection bin. 

5. The collection bin operator and property owner shall maintain, or 
cause to be maintained, the area surrounding the bins free from 
any overflow collection items, furniture, rubbish, debris, hazardous 
materials, and noxious odors. To extent provided by law, the 
collection bin operator and/or property owner shall be jointly and 
severally responsible for the City's cost to abate any nuisance. 



4 
 

6. Collection bins shall be located on a parcel where there is a 
functioning and permitted use. Collection bins shall not be 
permitted: 

i. On any land used or zoned residential; 

ii. On any unimproved parcel; 

iii. Where the principal use of the land has been closed or 
unoccupied for more than thirty (30) days. 

iv. One collection bin on a single lot of record is allowed. 

v. The total size of a collection bin is limited to a maximum 
dimension of 5ft × 5ft × 7ft. 

vi. Collection bins shall not cause a visual obstruction, as 
determined by the Director of Public Safety or Director of 
Public Services, to vehicular or pedestrian traffic. 

vii. No collection bin shall be placed closer than ten feet from: 

A. A public sidewalk; 

B. A public right-of-way; 

C. A driveway; or 

D. A side or rear property line of adjacent property used 
for residential purposes. 

7. Collection bins shall not be placed in a designated fire lane, in or 
adjacent to a handicap parking space, or block a building entrance 
or exit. 

8. Collection bins shall be made of durable metal or UV resistant 
molded hard plastic or fiberglass material that is fire resistant or 
fire proof. 

 
Section 22-225: Permit Revocation 
 

a. If the Public Services Department and/or Planning Department 
determines that a collection bin has been placed or is being maintained 
in violation of this Article, a correction notice shall be sent by regular 
United States Mail to the collection bin operator and property owner of 
the real property on which the collection bin has been placed, as 
reflected on the most recent permit application. In the event there is not 



5 
 

on file a permit application made for the collection bin within 24 months 
immediately preceding the date of violation, the correction notice shall be 
sent to the real property tax payer of record in the Assessor's Office. The 
correction notice shall describe the offending condition and the actions 
necessary to correct the condition. The correction notice shall provide 
that the offending condition be corrected or abated within seven (7) 
calendar days after mailing. 

b. If the offending condition is not corrected or abated within seven (7) 
calendar days after mailing, the City or the City's contractor may clean-
up the collection bin area. 

c. All costs incurred by the City or the City's contractor associated with the 
correction or abatement of a collection bin shall be the responsibility of 
the property owner and collection bin owner. If such obligation is not paid 
within thirty (30) days after mailing of a bill of costs to the property 
owner, the City may place a lien upon such real property enforceable as 
a tax lien in the manner prescribed by the general laws of this State 
against the property and collected as in the case of general property tax. 
If the same is not paid prior to the preparation of the next assessment roll 
of the City, the amount shall be assessed as a special tax against such 
premises on the next assessment roll and collected thereunder. 

d. The City Clerk shall have the right to revoke any permit issued hereunder 
if: 

1. Offending conditions cited in a correction notice are not corrected 
or abated within seven days after mailing; 

2. Placement or conditions of the bin or surrounding area violate any 
applicable State or Federal law; 

3. Any governmental authority or agency determines that the 
collection bin has violated the Michigan Consumer Protection Act 
(Act 331 of 1976, as amended) and/or the Charitable 
Organizations and Solicitations Act (Act 169 of 1975, as 
amended) or other statute enacted to regulate or govern collection 
bins. 

4. Upon revocation of permit issued pursuant to this Article, the 
collection bin shall be removed from the real property within ten 
calendar days and, if not so removed within the time period, the 
City or the City's contractor may remove, store or dispose of the 
collection bin. 

5. All costs incurred by the City or the City's contractor associated 
with removal, storage or disposal of a collection bin shall be the 
responsibility of the property owner and collection bin owner. If 
such obligation is not paid within thirty (30) days after mailing of a 



6 
 

billing of costs to the property owner, the City may place a lien 
upon such real property enforceable as a tax lien in the manner 
prescribed by the general laws of this State against the property 
and collected as in the case of general property tax. If the same is 
not paid prior to the preparation of the next assessment roll of the 
City, the amount shall be assessed as a special tax against such 
premises on the next assessment roll and collected thereunder. 

6. If a collection bin permit is revoked, the collection bin operator 
shall not be eligible for a new permit for a period of one (1) year 
from the date of revocation. 

Section 22-226: Appeal to City Council 
 
Any person aggrieved by the decision rendered by the City Clerk in granting or 
denying an application for a permit under this article or in revoking a permit 
issued under this article may appeal that decision to the City Council. The 
appeal shall be made by filing a written request with the City Clerk setting forth 
the grounds for the appeal not later than ten (10) days after receiving notice of 
the revocation by the City Clerk. In the event that the written request is filed 
with the City Clerk, the City Council shall hold a public hearing on the 
revocation, and shall have the power to reverse, affirm or modify the decision of 
the City Clerk. The City Council shall, in its determination, make written findings 
of fact supporting its decision. The determination by the City Council shall be 
final, subject to appeal to a court of competent jurisdiction. 
 
Section 22-227: Penalties 
 

a. In addition to revocation of permit pursuant to Section 22-225, any 
person violating the provisions of this article is responsible for a 
municipal civil infraction. 

 

b. In addition to the penalty provided in subsection (a) of this section, any 
condition caused or permitted to exist in violation of the provisions of 
this article, or any ordinance, shall be deemed a new and separate 
offense for each day that such condition continues to exist. 

 
c. Nothing in this chapter shall prevent the City from pursuing any other 

remedy provided by law in conjunction with or in lieu of prosecuting 
persons under this section for violation of this chapter. 

 
d. The collection bin operator and real property owner shall be jointly and 

severally liable for each violation and for payment of any fines and 
costs. 

 
 



7 
 

Section 2. Severability.  This ordinance and each article, section, subsection, 
paragraph, subparagraph, part, provision, sentence, word and portion thereof are 
hereby declared to be severable, and if they or any of them are declared to be 
invalid or unenforceable for any reason by a court of competent jurisdiction, the 
remainder of this ordinance shall not be affected. 
  

 
This Ordinance shall take effect on December 18, 2019 after publication. 
 
First Reading:     Second Reading & Adoption: 
   
 
November 4, 2019     November 18, 2019    
 
Ayes _____      Ayes   _____   
Nays _____      Nays   _____ 
Absent_____      Absent_____ 
 
 
_________________________   _________________________ 
Jill Domingo,      David Atchison, 
Clerk       Mayor. 



6283-2e60-4380-6363  11/15/19 

City of Albion 
William L. Reiger Municipal Building 

112 West Cass Street 

Albion, Michigan   49224 

 

Schedule of 2020 Regular City Council Meetings 

 

The City Council of the City of Albion will meet in regular session in Council Chambers at 112 
W. Cass Street beginning at 7:00 p.m. on the dates listed below.  Study sessions and special 
meetings of the City Council will be posted in advance as needed.  City Council regular 
sessions are held the first and third Mondays of each month except where noted below or in 
case of emergency. 
 
This notice is published in accordance with the Albion City Charter and the Open Meetings Act 
requirements. 
 
 
 January 6, 2020    January 21, 2020 (Tuesday) 
 February 03, 2020   February 18, 2020 (Tuesday) 
 March 02, 2020   March 16, 2020 
 April 06, 2020    April 20, 2020 
 May 04, 2020    May 18, 2020 
 June 01, 2020    June 15, 2020 
 July 06, 2020     July 20, 2020 
 August 03, 2020   August 17, 2020 
 September 08, 2020 (Tuesday) September 21, 2020 
 October 05, 2020   October 19, 2020 
 November 02, 2020   November 16, 2020 
 December 07, 2020   December 21, 2020 
 
 
       Jill Domingo 
       City Clerk 
 



Parks, Trailways and Recreation (PT&R) Commission 
Purpose: A Parks & Recreation Commission is typically charged with the 
responsibility of acting in an advisory capacity to city government in  

all matters pertaining to public parks and recreation, and to cooperate with other 

governmental agencies and groups in the advancement of sound recreation and 

park planning and programming.  The Commission strives to support and 
connect people with local parks and recreational opportunities in the 
community and facilitate the sustainable growth of a vibrant, inclusive city-
wide recreation program in our community. 

The PT&R Commission would be responsible for developing a long-term Parks, 
Trailways and Recreation Master Plan for submission to City Council for approval. 
Recognizing the important role that parks & recreation play in economic and 
community development, establishing a multi-year Parks, Trails and 
Recreation Master Plan is recommended.  The over-arching goal of such a plan 
would be to develop and secure broad community ownership in a vision for 
the parks, trails and recreation in Albion.  A Master Plan would define a vision 
for our parks and recreation program created by the community and establish 
community commitment to an achievable implementation strategy to ensure 
our community has a wide number of recreational activities, and opportunities for 

all ages.  A sustainable PT&R Master Plan will ensure the number, location and size 
of parks, greenspaces and other public collaboration spaces are “right-sized” for our 
community and available resources to ensure sustainability  and quality. 

. 
 
Goals: Enrich and increase community utilization of Albion parks and increase  
participation in and expand the variety of excellent recreational opportunities in 
the greater Albion area.   

• Serve as a community voice in matters of parks, trails and recreation. 
• Increase funding opportunities for PT&R programs. 
• Advocate for parks and recreation opportunities and participation at all 

levels. 
• Advise the City Council on related policies, projects, grants and 

expenditures of city funds for PT&R. 
 

Mission Statement: To develop, promote, and support sustainable parks and 
trails and expand high quality recreation opportunities for the full community to 



participate in diverse activities by providing effective leadership and interaction 
with the community, city government and area organizations, thereby enriching 
the lives of our citizens.  
 



Arts & Culture Commission 
Purpose: An Arts and Culture Commission is typically charged with the 
responsibility of acting in an advisory capacity to city government in 
connection with the artistic and cultural development of the city.  The 
Commission strives to support and connect people with arts and culture 
endeavors in the community and facilitate the preservation and sustainable 
growth of a vibrant, inclusive community culture and a growth in our 
communities visual, performing, and musical art. 
 
The A&C Commission would be responsible for developing a long-term Arts & 
Culture Master Plan for submission to City Council for approval. 
Recognizing the important role that the arts play in economic and community 
development, establishing a multi-year Arts and Culture Master Plan is 
recommended.  The over-arching goal of such a plan would be to develop and 
secure broad community ownership in a vision for the arts and culture in 
Albion.  A Master Plan would define a vision for the arts created by the 
community and establish community commitment to an achievable 
implementation strategy. 
 
Goals: Enrich and increase participation and awareness of the greater Albion area 
cultural and artist community.   

• Serve as a community source for arts and cultural information 
• Increase funding opportunities for arts and culture programs 
• Advocate for arts education at all levels 
• Advise the City on arts related policies, projects and public art. 

 
Mission Statement 
To develop, promote, and support quality opportunities for all persons to 
participate in diverse art and culture activities by providing effective leadership 
and interaction with the community, its artists and cultural organizations, thereby 
enriching the lives of our citizens.  

 















Slm\Forms\Application-CityBoard-Commission 

 
 

City of Albion 
William L. Rieger Municipal Building 
112 West Cass Street • Albion, Michigan 49224 
(517) 629-5535 • Fax (517) 629-4168 

 
 
APPLICATION FOR MEMBERSHIP AND/OR REAPPOINTMENT  

ON CITY BOARDS OR COMMISSIONS 
 
Mail or Deliver Completed Application to: City Clerk 
     City of Albion 
     112 W. Cass Street 
     Albion, MI   49224 
 
The information in this Application is requested to assist the Mayor and/or City Council in selecting 
individuals to serve on City Boards & Commissions.  Completion of the Application and Consent and 
Certification is mandatory for consideration of appointment.  
 
Thank you for your interest in serving on a City of Albion board or commission.  The Albion City Council 
requires that every member of a board or commission meet the following qualifications: 
 

• Appointee is not in default to the City (appointee does not have unpaid water/sewer bills, 
property taxes, income taxes). 

• For most Boards & Commissions, appointee should be a resident of the City. 
 
 
Name:___Herman__________________Joseph__________________McCall______________________ 
                    (First)                                      (Middle)                                    (Last) 
 
Home Address:_1206 Maple Albion__________________________Telephone #:_517-629-9215______ 
 
Place of Employment:_State of Michigan – Department of Health and Human Services____________ 
 
Business Address:_235 S, Grand  Lansing, MI__________________Telephone #:__________________ 
 
E-Mail: hermanjmccall@gmail.com (personal email)___________________Fax:____________________ 
 
Title/Type of Work:_Executive Director - Children’s Services Agency___________________________ 
 
Length of Residence in City:__40_years____Own/Rent:__Own________US Citizen: Y___x__  N______ 
 
Educational Background:_Bachelor - Sociology; Masters - Counseling; Doctorate - Education_______ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Community Activities:_Board Member - AEDC; Board Member – Homestead Savings Bank________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 



Slm\Forms\Application-CityBoard-Commission 

Application for Membership       Page 2 of 3 
 
List Board or Commission on which you are interested in serving (see detailed descriptions on the City of 
Albion website): 
 
 1)__AEDC_________________________  2)_____________________________________ 
  
  
Additional information on experience, qualifications, etc.: 

I have had the pleasure of serving on the EDC board with three Mayors and under the leadership of 
two CEO’s. During that time, I was selected by my board colleagues to serve in board leadership 
positions including treasurer, vice chair and chair of the board. Additionally, during that time my 
professional experience has included key leadership level positions in both the private (non-profit) 
and public (government) sectors with the responsibility for managing program grants less than 
$100,000 to specifically and most recently overseeing an agency budget of $1.2 billion; so I have a 
demonstrated understanding of executing grand ideas with limited resources and the enormity of the 
duty for ensuring public trust, while remaining personally committed to sharing, promoting and 
supporting an “Albion Success” story. Further, my experience includes part-time positions both 
within the Albion Public School (Coach) and Albion College (Adjunct Instructor) systems. Born and 
raised with big city (Chicago) roots, I have now been a tax paying member of the Albion community 
for 40 years, and a home owner (property tax paying resident) for 35 years, while raising two 
children that grew up in the Albion Public School system. As such, my combination of diverse 
personal experiences and professional experience will continue to provide a complementary member-
perspective that adds leadership level value to a committed, problem solving, innovative, forward-
thinking EDC board. Committed to integrity, excellence, collaboration and shared accountability 
and with responsibility, I am prepared to serve.  
 
Please comment briefly on why you wish to serve on a particular board or commission.  Be specific as to 
your goals and ideas regarding how you wish to contribute to the work of the board or commission: 
 
My goals and commitment are consistent with implementing the strategic objectives and mission of 
the EDC as vigorously defined and developed by the CEO and the board.  
 
Relationship to City Officials/Department Heads:  Are you, your spouse, or other close family members 
related to any City Officials or Department Heads?  If yes, please explain:__N/A_____________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Business relationship:  Do you, your spouse, or any close family member currently have a business 
relationship with the City of Albion?  If yes, please explain:_N/A_________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Convictions:  Have you ever been convicted of any criminal violation?  Have you ever been convicted of a 
felony while holding public office or public employment?  If yes, please explain:_No 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
REFERENCES: 
 
Name:_Michael Williams___________________________Relationship: Professional/Personal______ 
 
Telephone #:_248-258-0440________________________ 
 
Name:_Ronnie Parker   ____________________________Relationship:_Personal/Professional______ 
 
Telephone #:_517-629-7210_________________________ 



Slm\Forms\Application-CityBoard-Commission 

Application for Membership       Page 3 of 3 
 
The following information and consent is necessary in order to conduct a proper review of your 
application for appointment.  This information will be kept confidential. 
 

********************************************************** 
 

CONSENT AND CERTIFICATION 
 
I consent to the release of information concerning my ability and fitness for the position to which I seek 
appointment by my employer(s), school(s), law enforcement agencies, and other individuals and 
organizations to the City of Albion Office of the City Manager.   
 
I hereby authorize the City of Albion to verify all the information I have provided on my application.  I also 
agree to execute any additional written authorizations necessary for the City to obtain access to and copies 
of records pertaining to this information.  I release the City of Albion and agencies who have released 
information from all liability arising from information given or received. 
 
I certify that I can and will, upon request, substantiate all statements made by me on this application; that 
such statements are true, complete and correct to the best of my knowledge.  I understand that a false 
statement, dishonest answer, misrepresentation or omission to any question will be sufficient for rejection 
of my application, removal of my name from the eligible list or my immediate removal should such 
falsifications or misrepresentation be discovered after I am sworn in to any Board or Commission. 
 
I, ____Herman McCall____________________________________, certify that the information provided  
                                         (Please Print) 
 
in this application is, to the best of my knowledge, true and accurate. 
 
 
Date of Birth:_8/15/1956_______________________________ 
 
 
Signature:___________________________________________________Date:_July 20, 2018__________ 
 















































Memorandum 
Office of the City Manager 

 

 

 

TO: Honorable Mayor Atchison and Albion City Council 

FROM: Darwin D. P. McClary, City Manager 

DATE: November 14, 2019 

RE: CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

  

WELCOME NEW COUNCIL MEMBER 

 

Congratulations to Al Smith on his election to the city council to represent Precinct 3 and on an 

eventful and engaging swearing-in ceremony!  I look forward to Al joining our legislative team 

and playing an important role in helping us to move the City of Albion in a positive, vibrant, and 

sustainable direction. 

 

ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS 

 

I have attended the following meetings of interest during past two weeks: 

 November 1 – Irwin Avenue Reconstruction Project progress meeting 

 November 4 – Regular City Council meeting 

 November 6 – Albion Rising Tide Project/DDA Plan meeting with Leah DuMouchel 

 November 6 – Mayor weekly meeting 

 November 8 – Irwin Avenue Reconstruction Project progress meeting 

 November 13 – DDA Board meeting 

 November 13 – Swearing In Ceremony – new councilor Al Smith 

 November 13 – Project Rising Tide/Communications Plan Overview meeting with Linda 

LaNoue 

 November 13 – Mayor weekly meeting 

 

FY 2020 BUDGET PREPARATION 

 

A FY 2020 budget work session has been scheduled for city council for Saturday, November 16, 

to review the proposed FY 2020 budget.  Council will receive presentations from department 

directors on department budgets and will have an opportunity to ask questions and seek 

clarification on specific budget items.  It is important that city council review the budget 

document in advance and prepare questions, since we will not review every budget line item at 

the budget work session meeting.  The meeting will begin at 9:00 AM and conclude by 2:00 PM. 

 

  



 

 

City Manager’s Report Page 2 

ALBION COMMUNITY GARDENS TAX ASSESSMENT 

 

Albion Community Gardens, Inc., has contacted me to express serious concerns about the city 

assessor removing the tax exempt status of the property it uses within the city.  Assessor 

Cunningham has determined that there is no legal authority to permit the property to be tax 

exempt.  The matter was considered by the Board of Review earlier this year, and the board 

denied ACG’s tax appeal.  The matter is now scheduled to go before the Michigan Tax Tribunal, 

which is the proper authority to determine the group’s tax exemption claim, in December.  The 

City Assessor and I met with representatives from Albion Community Gardens and discussed case 

law related to similar tax exemptions.  The group provided copies of the cases.  The cases have 

been reviewed, and the Assessor continues to assert that the property is taxable.  Administration 

must comply with state law regarding assessing functions, and state law provides a clear process 

for aggrieved property owners to appeal property tax assessments.  I have notified Dick Porter of 

Albion Community Gardens to let him know of our decision so that the tax tribunal case can move 

forward.  It is my understanding that this matter may affect other entities within the city as well.  

I strongly recommend that the city council refrain from involving itself in these matters. 

 

IRWIN AVENUE RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT UPDATE 

 

The concrete work (curb and gutter and driveway approaches) has been delayed due to the 

weather.  DPS Interim Director Phillips will provide an update on the status of the project at 

council’s meeting on Monday. 

 

PROJECT RISING TIDE UPDATE 

 

I attended meetings with the Project Rising Tide team regarding the DDA Plan and Strategic 

Communications Plan components of the project.  An important consideration for the DDA Plan 

is the inclusion of staff support for the DDA, and this issue is being worked through by the team.  

The Strategic Communications Plan is in draft stage and should be finalized soon.  The 

communications plan addresses community branding, vision statement, mission statement, 

communications goals, identification of key community stakeholders for communications 

targeting, communications processes and methods, communications materials, media outlets, 

and use of social media. 

 

IRWIN AVENUE RECONSTRUCTION AND PRECINCT 3 ELECTION 

 

To insure that electors have free, unfettered access to the Precinct 3 polling location next 

Tuesday, we are undertaking several efforts to provide for a smooth election process: 

 The contractors will insure that both ends of the construction area are open to traffic to 

the polling location. 

 DPS will provide flag persons to help direct traffic during election hours of 7:00 AM to 

8:00 PM 



 

 

City Manager’s Report Page 3 

 No construction work will occur in front of the three driveways to the church polling 

location on the day of the election 

 City staff has mailed letters to all Precinct 3 voters informing them of the construction 

work and how to access the polling location 

 DPS employees are placing door hangers on all visible doors at each home 

 City staff is posting information on the city’s web site and social media 

 Temporary signage will be placed at the polling location driveways directing traffic into 

and out of the polling location 

 

COUNCIL/CITY MANAGER E-MAIL COMMUNICATIONS 

 

I appreciate so much the Mayor’s and city council’s efforts to include me on E-mail 

communications.  My E-mail inbox, however, is inundated with E-mail messages that are very 

difficult to keep on top of, especially given the fact that I currently do not have any administrative 

support in my office with the extended absence of Interim Assistant City Manager Snyder.  I 

would like to let council members know that it is not necessary to include me on every E-mail 

communication.  It is only important that I receive communications on matters of which council 

members believe I should be aware as City Manager or if a council member is requesting specific 

action to be taken by administration.  Reducing the E-mail message stream as much as possible 

will help me tremendously, and I appreciate your kind consideration. 

 

BIDNET/MITN PURCHASING GROUP MEMBERSHIP 

 

I intend to place consideration of membership in the BidNet/MITN Purchasing Group on the 

December 2 council meeting agenda for approval.  The Michigan Intergovernmental Trade 

Network (MITN) is a group that was formed by several Michigan municipalities to establish a 

joint, cooperative purchasing program to seek cost savings through economies of scale and a 

more efficient and effective purchasing and bidding program for members.  Membership includes 

access to the BidNet web based bidding system.  The only cost for membership is an upfront $195 

fee for BidNet to distribute informational materials to local vendors on the city’s participation in 

the program.  

 

CITY MANAGER GOALS AND PRIORITIES 

 

I intend to place the final draft of the City Manager’s goals and priorities, including changes 

recommended by city council, on the December 2 council meeting agenda for review and 

approval by council. 



INFORMATION 

ONLY 
 





































FUND: 101 202 203 208 226 250 265 275 277 450 452 590 591 661
CASH AND INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS

CASH SUMMARY BY ACCOUNT FOR CITY OF ALBION 1/2Page: 11/14/2019 10:19 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

FROM 09/01/2019 TO 09/30/2019

Ending
Balance

09/30/2019
Total 

Credits 
Total 

Debits 

Beginning
Balance

09/01/2019Description
Fund
Account

Fund 101 GENERAL FUND
222,154.26 345,995.18 181,228.18 386,921.26 CASH001.00
620,902.08 2,473.01 87,379.87 535,995.22 CASH - INCOME TAX ACCOUNT002.00
100,444.00 85.00 0.00 100,529.00 CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT003.00

100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 PETTY CASH004.00
400.00 0.00 0.00 400.00 PETTY CASH - CHANGE DRAWER004.02

1,505.08 3.64 0.00 1,508.72 HRA ACCOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES005.00
17,653.78 0.00 7.32 17,646.46 CASH PARK FENCE007.00

318,914.28 0.00 557.76 318,356.52 INVESTMENTS017.00

1,282,073.48 348,556.83 269,173.13 1,361,457.18 GENERAL FUND

Fund 202 MAJOR STREETS FUND
313,352.32 527,863.64 136,307.33 704,908.63 CASH001.00
604,364.96 0.00 500,351.85 104,013.11 INVESTMENTS017.00

917,717.28 527,863.64 636,659.18 808,921.74 MAJOR STREETS FUND

Fund 203 LOCAL STREETS FUND
364,296.90 43,555.16 53,392.96 354,459.10 CASH001.00

Fund 208 RECREATION FUND
150,830.70 10,148.69 5,310.49 155,668.90 CASH001.00

Fund 226 SOLID WASTE FUND
149,922.43 309,537.21 6,513.89 452,945.75 CASH001.00
354,651.03 0.00 300,197.16 54,453.87 INVESTMENTS017.00

504,573.46 309,537.21 306,711.05 507,399.62 SOLID WASTE FUND

Fund 250 CDBG FUND
33,565.13 0.00 13.93 33,551.20 CDBG FUND CASH001.01

Fund 265 DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND
(7,776.37)3,817.15 843.07 (4,802.29)CASH001.00

Fund 275 ALBION BUILDING AUTHORITY FUND
186,929.51 13,809.40 2,729.15 198,009.76 FUND CASH ACCOUNT001.01

0.00 276.76 0.00 276.76 PETTY CASH004.00

186,929.51 14,086.16 2,729.15 198,286.52 ALBION BUILDING AUTHORITY FUND

Fund 277 ABA SEC 8 MAPLE GROVE
262,763.02 35,339.36 44,997.46 253,104.92 FUND CASH ACCOUNT001.01
537,929.33 0.00 6,114.49 531,814.84 CASH - CAPITAL PROJECTS RESERV002.00
26,363.99 0.00 898.00 25,465.99 CASH-SECURITY DEPOSIT008.00

827,056.34 35,339.36 52,009.95 810,385.75 ABA SEC 8 MAPLE GROVE

Fund 450 STREET IMPROVEMENTS FUND
(155,003.59)264.30 6,416.79 (161,156.08)CASH001.00
260,488.45 0.00 455.60 260,032.85 INVESTMENTS017.00

105,484.86 264.30 6,872.39 98,876.77 STREET IMPROVEMENTS FUND

Fund 452 MDOT RECONSTRUCTION FUND
620,739.34 135,630.89 3,460.00 752,910.23 CASH001.00

Fund 590 SEWER FUND
67,426.52 114,740.18 97,410.69 84,756.01 CASH001.00

317,524.68 0.00 555.34 316,969.34 INVESTMENTS017.00

384,951.20 114,740.18 97,966.03 401,725.35 SEWER FUND

Fund 591 WATER FUND
257,305.89 104,752.42 101,806.39 260,251.92 CASH001.00
250,130.50 92.50 0.00 250,223.00 CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT003.00



FUND: 101 202 203 208 226 250 265 275 277 450 452 590 591 661
CASH AND INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS

CASH SUMMARY BY ACCOUNT FOR CITY OF ALBION 2/2Page: 11/14/2019 10:19 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

FROM 09/01/2019 TO 09/30/2019

Ending
Balance

09/30/2019
Total 

Credits 
Total 

Debits 

Beginning
Balance

09/01/2019Description
Fund
Account

61,990.00 0.00 0.00 61,990.00 RESTRICTED CASH - BOND RESERVE006.00
200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 CASH-SECURITY DEPOSIT008.00

369,785.05 0.00 646.74 369,138.31 INVESTMENTS017.00

939,411.44 104,844.92 102,453.13 941,803.23 WATER FUND

Fund 661 EQUIPMENT POOL FUND
53,572.29 52,352.48 20,620.20 85,304.57 CASH001.00

6,363,425.56 1,700,736.97 1,558,214.66 6,505,947.87 TOTAL - ALL FUNDS



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 1/12Page: 11/14/2019 10:18 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 09/30/2019
% Fiscal Year Completed: 74.79

% BDGT
USED

2019
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
09/30/2019

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2018

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
73.91 3,948,592.00 2,918,583.76 3,684,189.55 3,670,410.00   000 - GENERAL
100.00 0.00 10.00 75.50 76.00   209 - ASSESSING
100.00 0.00 315.20 62.67 62.00   215 - CLERK
263.75 600.00 1,582.50 817.00 600.00   260 - FINANCE DEPT AND/OR ABA GENERAL
63.14 58,000.00 36,623.96 89,746.80 87,447.00   276 - CEMETERY
75.54 36,500.00 27,572.69 36,163.93 85,173.00   345 - PUBLIC SAFETY
85.69 101,500.00 86,978.85 97,037.93 93,150.00   422 - CODE ENFORCEMENT
100.00 0.00 18,226.00 0.00 0.00   444 - TREE TRIMMING
100.00 0.00 96,127.00 0.00 0.00   448 - STREET LIGHTING
100.00 0.00 15,000.00 76,318.91 76,319.00   758 - ALBION RIVER/BIKE TRAIL
156.80 2,500.00 3,920.00 2,390.00 2,400.00   775 - PARKS
350.00 10,000.00 35,000.00 4,704.16 4,704.00   778 - HOLLAND PARK TRANSFORMATION PROJECT
100.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00   930 - TRANSFER IN

77.98 4,167,692.00 3,249,939.96 4,001,506.45 4,030,341.00   TOTAL REVENUES

39.02 50,606.00 19,747.47 40,841.67 54,055.00   101 - CITY COUNCIL
39.98 208,295.00 83,277.51 81,391.09 98,480.00   172 - CITY MANAGER
83.78 44,810.00 37,540.76 45,879.40 48,300.00   209 - ASSESSING
145.16 99,150.00 143,924.21 113,825.22 110,400.00   210 - ATTORNEY
59.61 127,725.00 76,132.57 129,168.66 129,375.00   215 - CLERK
75.88 14,900.00 11,306.70 25,642.52 29,579.00   226 - HUMAN RESOURCES
71.59 484,735.00 347,035.43 320,111.78 371,682.00   260 - FINANCE DEPT AND/OR ABA GENERAL
66.40 72,175.00 47,927.01 136,844.10 151,370.00   265 - MUNICIPAL BLDG AND/OR 201 N CLINTON ST
69.62 165,210.00 115,019.91 153,552.73 172,126.00   276 - CEMETERY
70.53 2,105,577.00 1,485,054.30 2,038,292.18 2,110,452.26   345 - PUBLIC SAFETY
78.84 253,285.00 199,678.98 176,629.64 194,817.00   422 - CODE ENFORCEMENT
207.79 56,125.00 116,622.24 48,279.07 64,182.00   442 - CITY MAINTENANCE
43.82 17,675.00 7,745.93 15,399.10 20,615.00   444 - TREE TRIMMING
78.08 15,270.00 11,922.39 22,140.42 28,737.00   447 - ENGINEERING
132.38 150,000.00 198,563.39 161,667.43 169,500.00   448 - STREET LIGHTING
37.14 21,000.00 7,799.43 9,803.12 8,600.00   526 - EPA LANDFILL
0.00 0.00 0.00 76,318.91 76,319.00   758 - ALBION RIVER/BIKE TRAIL

87.14 207,700.00 180,992.94 209,545.17 226,335.00   775 - PARKS
1.87 10,000.00 186.68 47.68 4,704.00   778 - HOLLAND PARK TRANSFORMATION PROJECT

81.71 149,674.00 122,300.53 128,297.34 136,650.00   895 - GENERAL APPROPRIATION

75.53 4,253,912.00 3,212,778.38 3,933,677.23 4,206,278.26   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

43.10 (86,220.00)37,161.58 67,829.22 (175,937.26)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

75.53 4,253,912.00 3,212,778.38 3,933,677.23 4,206,278.26 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
77.98 4,167,692.00 3,249,939.96 4,001,506.45 4,030,341.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 2/12Page: 11/14/2019 10:18 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 09/30/2019
% Fiscal Year Completed: 74.79

% BDGT
USED

2019
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
09/30/2019

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2018

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREETS FUND
76.30 775,882.00 591,964.76 739,779.68 750,327.00   000 - GENERAL
91.19 55,000.00 50,152.82 62,919.48 133,234.00   487 - M-99 TRUNKLINE

77.28 830,882.00 642,117.58 802,699.16 883,561.00   TOTAL REVENUES

2.44 95,000.00 2,319.20 0.00 0.00   454 - ACT 51 NON-MOTORIZED
43.86 420,188.00 184,284.03 364,295.74 417,766.00   461 - MAINTENANCE
2.93 3,083.00 90.27 683.93 3,183.00   465 - TRAFFIC SERVICES

41.94 50,515.00 21,186.12 31,143.18 53,365.00   467 - WINTER MAINTENANCE
63.92 33,360.00 21,322.12 25,589.29 40,577.00   486 - I-94 TRUNKLINE
70.93 30,540.00 21,661.49 22,723.15 33,587.00   487 - M-99 TRUNKLINE
56.53 15,305.00 8,651.65 12,728.49 19,257.00   488 - M-199 TRUNKLINE
100.00 128,000.00 128,000.00 193,000.00 193,000.00   965 - TRANSFER OUT

49.94 775,991.00 387,514.88 650,163.78 760,735.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

463.83 54,891.00 254,602.70 152,535.38 122,826.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

49.94 775,991.00 387,514.88 650,163.78 760,735.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
77.28 830,882.00 642,117.58 802,699.16 883,561.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREETS FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 3/12Page: 11/14/2019 10:18 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 09/30/2019
% Fiscal Year Completed: 74.79

% BDGT
USED

2019
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
09/30/2019

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2018

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREETS FUND
77.59 276,262.00 214,364.63 329,660.74 326,819.00   000 - GENERAL
100.00 125,000.00 125,000.00 190,000.00 190,000.00   930 - TRANSFER IN

84.57 401,262.00 339,364.63 519,660.74 516,819.00   TOTAL REVENUES

85.38 342,082.00 292,082.45 340,998.09 376,332.00   461 - MAINTENANCE
5.86 6,965.00 408.40 1,413.30 7,127.00   465 - TRAFFIC SERVICES

43.24 41,600.00 17,987.55 33,462.90 57,950.00   467 - WINTER MAINTENANCE
100.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00   965 - TRANSFER OUT

79.63 393,647.00 313,478.40 378,874.29 444,409.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

339.94 7,615.00 25,886.23 140,786.45 72,410.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

79.63 393,647.00 313,478.40 378,874.29 444,409.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
84.57 401,262.00 339,364.63 519,660.74 516,819.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREETS FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 4/12Page: 11/14/2019 10:18 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 09/30/2019
% Fiscal Year Completed: 74.79

% BDGT
USED

2019
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
09/30/2019

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2018

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 208 - RECREATION FUND
92.93 178,065.00 165,477.97 151,726.04 142,636.00   780 - RECREATION

92.93 178,065.00 165,477.97 151,726.04 142,636.00   TOTAL REVENUES

76.77 177,599.00 136,351.07 138,936.60 153,687.00   780 - RECREATION

76.77 177,599.00 136,351.07 138,936.60 153,687.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

6,250.41 466.00 29,126.90 12,789.44 (11,051.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

76.77 177,599.00 136,351.07 138,936.60 153,687.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
92.93 178,065.00 165,477.97 151,726.04 142,636.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 208 - RECREATION FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 5/12Page: 11/14/2019 10:18 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 09/30/2019
% Fiscal Year Completed: 74.79

% BDGT
USED

2019
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
09/30/2019

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2018

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 226 - SOLID WASTE FUND
96.51 252,725.00 243,892.59 266,269.81 251,488.00   000 - GENERAL

96.51 252,725.00 243,892.59 266,269.81 251,488.00   TOTAL REVENUES

2.70 7,523.00 203.13 0.00 16,205.00   523 - LEAF PICKUP
53.08 10,160.00 5,392.81 5,314.50 16,020.00   524 - TREE DUMP
51.64 144,368.00 74,549.11 122,779.26 145,355.00   528 - SOLID WASTE
100.00 25,500.00 25,500.00 25,500.00 25,500.00   965 - TRANSFER OUT

56.33 187,551.00 105,645.05 153,593.76 203,080.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

212.12 65,174.00 138,247.54 112,676.05 48,408.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

56.33 187,551.00 105,645.05 153,593.76 203,080.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
96.51 252,725.00 243,892.59 266,269.81 251,488.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 226 - SOLID WASTE FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 6/12Page: 11/14/2019 10:18 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 09/30/2019
% Fiscal Year Completed: 74.79

% BDGT
USED

2019
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
09/30/2019

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2018

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 265 - DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND
13.41 44,000.00 5,898.75 6,821.15 12,830.00   000 - GENERAL
153.87 30,000.00 46,162.16 28,884.17 25,000.00   400 - FED DRUG LAW ENFOR - REIMBUR

70.35 74,000.00 52,060.91 35,705.32 37,830.00   TOTAL REVENUES

41.17 72,500.00 29,848.30 27,696.09 29,264.00   333 - DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT
2,444.12 1,500.00 36,661.85 11,377.88 10,982.00   400 - FED DRUG LAW ENFOR - REIMBUR

89.88 74,000.00 66,510.15 39,073.97 40,246.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 0.00 (14,449.24)(3,368.65)(2,416.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

89.88 74,000.00 66,510.15 39,073.97 40,246.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
70.35 74,000.00 52,060.91 35,705.32 37,830.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 265 - DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 7/12Page: 11/14/2019 10:18 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 09/30/2019
% Fiscal Year Completed: 74.79

% BDGT
USED

2019
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
09/30/2019

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2018

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 275 - ALBION BUILDING AUTHORITY FUND
99.07 4,569.00 4,526.33 4,857.09 4,743.00   000 - GENERAL
0.00 0.00 0.00 137,439.34 137,439.00   264 - EDC BUILDING

75.00 1,512.00 1,134.00 1,512.00 1,512.00   265 - MUNICIPAL BLDG AND/OR 201 N CLINTON ST
11.77 32,000.00 3,767.80 36,000.00 34,450.00   271 - FIRE/AMBULANCE BUILDING
0.00 1.00 0.00 1.00 1.00   273

24.76 38,082.00 9,428.13 179,809.43 178,145.00   TOTAL REVENUES

66.76 7,107.00 4,744.36 5,929.56 7,090.00   260 - FINANCE DEPT AND/OR ABA GENERAL
100.00 0.00 297.24 16,965.64 17,190.00   264 - EDC BUILDING
51.72 2,005.00 1,036.91 1,931.37 1,945.00   265 - MUNICIPAL BLDG AND/OR 201 N CLINTON ST
0.00 0.00 0.00 26,700.00 30,000.00   270 - 101 N GALE ST

48.08 26,850.00 12,908.39 22,617.19 29,250.00   271 - FIRE/AMBULANCE BUILDING
268.28 1,951.00 5,234.11 10,600.54 12,400.00   273 - 112 E ERIE ST

63.89 37,913.00 24,221.01 84,744.30 97,875.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

8,753.18 169.00 (14,792.88)95,065.13 80,270.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

63.89 37,913.00 24,221.01 84,744.30 97,875.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
24.76 38,082.00 9,428.13 179,809.43 178,145.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 275 - ALBION BUILDING AUTHORITY FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 8/12Page: 11/14/2019 10:18 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 09/30/2019
% Fiscal Year Completed: 74.79

% BDGT
USED

2019
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
09/30/2019

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2018

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 277 - ABA SEC 8 MAPLE GROVE
74.81 455,400.00 340,673.92 471,362.45 450,400.00   000 - GENERAL

74.81 455,400.00 340,673.92 471,362.45 450,400.00   TOTAL REVENUES

52.49 366,153.00 192,188.84 313,659.44 368,450.00   701 - ABA SEC 8 MAPLE GROVE
0.00 61,750.00 0.00 64,750.00 64,750.00   905 - DEBT SERVICE - BONDS

44.91 427,903.00 192,188.84 378,409.44 433,200.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

540.00 27,497.00 148,485.08 92,953.01 17,200.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

44.91 427,903.00 192,188.84 378,409.44 433,200.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
74.81 455,400.00 340,673.92 471,362.45 450,400.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 277 - ABA SEC 8 MAPLE GROVE:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 9/12Page: 11/14/2019 10:18 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 09/30/2019
% Fiscal Year Completed: 74.79

% BDGT
USED

2019
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
09/30/2019

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2018

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 367 - SIDEWALK PROGRAM FUND
(462.90)(1,000.00)4,628.98 25,689.59 23,906.00   000 - GENERAL

(462.90)(1,000.00)4,628.98 25,689.59 23,906.00   TOTAL REVENUES

0.09 300,000.00 274.81 0.00 23,856.00   443 - SIDEWALK PROGRAM

0.09 300,000.00 274.81 0.00 23,856.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

1.45 (301,000.00)4,354.17 25,689.59 50.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.09 300,000.00 274.81 0.00 23,856.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
462.90 (1,000.00)4,628.98 25,689.59 23,906.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 367 - SIDEWALK PROGRAM FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 10/12Page: 11/14/2019 10:18 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 09/30/2019
% Fiscal Year Completed: 74.79

% BDGT
USED

2019
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
09/30/2019

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2018

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 590 - SEWER FUND
75.41 1,221,300.00 920,945.33 1,238,544.36 1,215,326.00   000 - GENERAL
0.00 0.00 0.00 2,250.00 0.00   536 - WATER UTILITY OPERATIONS

100.00 0.00 250,000.00 97,102.67 99,352.00   546 - MEDC GRANT - DIGESTER, PUMP, ETC.

95.88 1,221,300.00 1,170,945.33 1,337,897.03 1,314,678.00   TOTAL REVENUES

71.98 1,367,208.00 984,085.52 1,326,798.41 1,348,808.00   536 - SEWER UTILITY OPERATIONS
70.64 7,800.00 5,509.76 8,143.14 7,800.00   542 - WWTP ENERGY IMPROVEMENTS
100.00 0.00 2,291.00 0.25 400,000.00   546 - MEDC GRANT - DIGESTER, PUMP, ETC.
100.00 0.00 2,046.71 0.00 0.00   906 - DEBT SERVICE - LOANS
100.00 148,400.00 148,400.00 148,400.00 148,400.00   965 - TRANSFER OUT

74.99 1,523,408.00 1,142,332.99 1,483,341.80 1,905,008.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

9.47 (302,108.00)28,612.34 (145,444.77)(590,330.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

74.99 1,523,408.00 1,142,332.99 1,483,341.80 1,905,008.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
95.88 1,221,300.00 1,170,945.33 1,337,897.03 1,314,678.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 590 - SEWER FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 11/12Page: 11/14/2019 10:18 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 09/30/2019
% Fiscal Year Completed: 74.79

% BDGT
USED

2019
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
09/30/2019

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2018

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 591 - WATER FUND
76.79 952,850.00 731,671.46 952,652.17 930,714.00   000 - GENERAL
0.00 0.00 0.00 500,000.00 500,000.00   548 - WATERTOWER PAINTING PROJECT

76.79 952,850.00 731,671.46 1,452,652.17 1,430,714.00   TOTAL REVENUES

80.31 1,064,423.00 854,802.74 1,047,971.16 1,059,059.00   536 - WATER UTILITY OPERATIONS
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00   540 - WELLHEAD PROTECTION
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 568,200.00   548 - WATERTOWER PAINTING PROJECT

100.00 0.00 5,123.14 0.00 0.00   906 - DEBT SERVICE - LOANS
100.00 231,800.00 231,800.00 11,450.00 11,450.00   965 - TRANSFER OUT

84.19 1,296,723.00 1,091,725.88 1,059,421.16 1,639,209.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

104.71 (343,873.00)(360,054.42)393,231.01 (208,495.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

84.19 1,296,723.00 1,091,725.88 1,059,421.16 1,639,209.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
76.79 952,850.00 731,671.46 1,452,652.17 1,430,714.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 591 - WATER FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 12/12Page: 11/14/2019 10:18 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 09/30/2019
% Fiscal Year Completed: 74.79

% BDGT
USED

2019
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
09/30/2019

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2018

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 661 - EQUIPMENT POOL FUND
82.96 285,175.00 236,594.85 323,267.55 271,252.00   000 - GENERAL

82.96 285,175.00 236,594.85 323,267.55 271,252.00   TOTAL REVENUES

67.39 299,875.00 202,088.42 297,641.60 315,761.00   770 - EQUIPMENT POOL
0.00 0.00 0.00 93.30 93.00   905 - DEBT SERVICE - BONDS

100.00 17,850.00 17,850.00 17,850.00 17,850.00   965 - TRANSFER OUT

69.22 317,725.00 219,938.42 315,584.90 333,704.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

51.17 (32,550.00)16,656.43 7,682.65 (62,452.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

69.22 317,725.00 219,938.42 315,584.90 333,704.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
82.96 285,175.00 236,594.85 323,267.55 271,252.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 661 - EQUIPMENT POOL FUND:

32.29 (909,939.00)293,836.43 952,424.51 (709,517.26)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

70.58 9,766,372.00 6,892,959.88 8,615,821.23 10,241,287.26 TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS
81.15 8,856,433.00 7,186,796.31 9,568,245.74 9,531,770.00 TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS


	1                                             11182019 Agenda.pdf (p.1-2)
	2                                         Holiday Flyer.pdf (p.3)
	3                               11-4-2019 Council Minutes.pdf (p.4-11)
	4                                                    2019-11-18 Discussion on Clarification of City Charter Provisions re Ineligibility for Election or Appointment to City Office.pdf (p.12-13)
	4                             Sec._4.3.___Persons_ineligible_for_city_office_or_employment.pdf (p.14)
	5                              Ordinance 2019-09 Amended.pdf (p.15-16)
	6                                              Ordinance 2019-10.pdf (p.17-23)
	7                                      2020 council meetings.pdf (p.24)
	8                                           Parks Trails  Recreation Commission Description (003).pdf (p.25-26)
	9                                                   Arts  Culture Commission Description.pdf (p.27)
	11                                     Application Evans.pdf (p.28-30)
	12                                               Application Wolf.pdf (p.31-33)
	13                                            Application McCall.pdf (p.34-36)
	14                                                             Application Norris.pdf (p.37-58)
	15                                     2019-11-14 Manager Report.pdf (p.59-61)
	16                                           INFORMATION ONLY.pdf (p.62)
	17                                              Info 1.pdf (p.63-64)
	Untitled_20191116_044121.pdf (p.65-79)
	18                                      9-30-2019 Cash Summary.pdf (p.80-81)
	19                                  9-30-2019 Rev  Exp.pdf (p.82-93)

